

*Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.*

COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Plant Industry Division

Rules Pertaining to the Administration and Enforcement of the Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program Act

8 CCR 1203-23

Pursuant to the provisions and requirements of the Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program Act, Title 35, Article 61, C.R.S., the following Rules are hereby promulgated to regulate the registration of ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~hemp cultivation:

Part 1 DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 “Act” means the Industrial Hemp regulatory Program Act, Title 35, Article 61, C.R.S.
- 1.2 “Commercial” means ~~THE GROWTH OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP BY ANY PERSON OR LEGAL ENTITY OTHER THAN AN INSTITUTION OF HIGHER EDUCATION OR UNDER A PILOT PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR PURPOSES OF AGRICULTURAL OR ACADEMIC RESEARCH IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF GROWING INDUSTRIAL HEMP engaged in commerce and having profit as a chief aim.~~
- 1.3 “Commissioner” means the Commissioner of Agriculture and any employee of the Department of Agriculture associated with the Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program.
- 1.4 “Composite Sample” means the combined total number of hemp samples taken from the plants in the growing area.
- 1.5 “Department” means the Colorado Department of Agriculture.
- 1.6 “Growing Area” means the land area on which ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~hemp is grown.
- 1.7 “Industrial Hemp” means a plant of the genus Cannabis and any part of the plant, whether growing or not, containing a delta-9 tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) concentration of no more than three-tenths of one percent (0.3%) on a dry weight basis.
- 1.8 “Law Enforcement” means the activities of the ~~FEDERAL, STATE AND LOCAL~~ agencies responsible for maintaining public order and enforcing the law, ~~particularly the activities of prevention, detection, and investigation of crime and the apprehension of criminals.~~
- ~~1.9 “REGISTRANT” MEANS ANY INDIVIDUAL OR LEGAL ENTITY WHO HOLDS A VALID REGISTRATION TO GROW INDUSTRIAL HEMP UNDER THESE RULES.~~
- ~~1.10 “REGISTRATION” MEANS AUTHORIZATION BY THE COMMISSIONER FOR ANY INDIVIDUAL OR LEGAL ENTITY TO GROW INDUSTRIAL HEMP ON A DESIGNATED LAND AREA.~~
- 1.911 “Research and Development” means growth of ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~hemp ~~EITHER BY AN INSTITUTION OF HIGHER EDUCATION OR UNDER A PILOT PROGRAM ADMINISTERED BY THE DEPARTMENT FOR PURPOSES OF AGRICULTURAL OR ACADEMIC RESEARCH IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF GROWING INDUSTRIAL HEMP for increase of seed stock from parent material intended for varietal development,~~

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

~~phytoremediation, basic agronomic practices, and other activities for the purpose of discovering and enabling development of useful processes, information and products.~~

1.12 "VARIETY" MEANS A GROUP OR INDIVIDUAL(S) PLANT(S) THAT EXHIBITS THE SAME OBSERVABLE PHYSICAL CHARACTERISTICS OR HAVE THE SAME GENETIC COMPOSITION.

Part 2 REGISTRATION

- 2.1 Each applicant for a commercial ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp registration shall submit a signed, complete, accurate, and legible application form provided by the Commissioner, at least 30 days prior to planting, which includes the following information:
- 2.1.1 The name and address of the applicant.
 - 2.1.2 Type of business entity, such as corporation, LLC, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.
 - 2.1.3 Business name(s) if different from (2.1.1) above.
 - 2.1.4 The legal description (Section, Township, Range) in which the growing area(s) ~~are~~ **is** located.
 - 2.1.5 The global positioning location coordinates taken at the approximate center of the growing area(s).
 - 2.1.6 A map of the land area on the which the applicant plans to grow the ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp, showing the boundaries and dimensions of the growing area(s) in acres or square feet, and the location of different varieties within the growing area(s), if applicable.
 - 2.1.7 **BY SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION, THE** ~~applicant's acknowledgment~~ **REGISTRANT ACKNOWLEDGES** and agree~~ments~~ **ments** to the following terms and conditions:
 - 2.1.7.1 Any information provided to the Department may be publicly disclosed and be provided to law enforcement agencies without further notice to the applicant or registrant.
 - 2.1.7.2 The registrant agrees to allow any inspection and sampling that the Department deems necessary.
 - 2.1.7.3 The registrant agrees to pay for any **sampling INSPECTION** and **LABORATORY** analysis costs that the Department deems necessary **WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THE INVOICE.**
 - 2.1.7.4 The registrant agrees to submit all required reports by the applicable due-dates specified by the Commissioner.
- 2.2 Each applicant for a research and development ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp registration shall submit a signed, complete, accurate, and legible application, ~~on a~~ form provided by the Commissioner, at least 30 days prior to planting, which includes the following information:
- 2.2.1 The name and address of the applicant.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

- 2.2.2 Type of business or organization such as corporation, LLC, partnership, sole proprietor, etc.
- 2.2.3 Business name(s) if different from (2.2.1) above.
- 2.2.4 The legal description (Section, Township, Range) of the growing area.
- 2.2.5 Global positioning system location taken at the approximate center of the growing area(s); ~~a map of the land area on which the applicant plans to grow the industrial hemp, showing the boundaries and dimensions of the growing area(s) in acres or square feet, and the location of different varieties within the growing area(s), if applicable.~~

2.2.6 A MAP OF THE LAND AREA ON WHICH THE APPLICANT PLANS TO GROW THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP, SHOWING THE BOUNDARIES AND DIMENSIONS OF THE GROWING AREA IN ACRES OR SQUARE FEET, AND THE LOCATION OF DIFFERENT VARIETIES WITHIN THE GROWING AREA, IF APPLICABLE.

2.2.67 BY SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION THE applicant's acknowledgment REGISTRANT ACKNOWLEDGES and agreements to the following terms and conditions:

- 2.2.67.1 Any information provided to the ~~D~~Department may be publicly disclosed and be provided to law enforcement agencies without further notice to the applicant or registrant.
- 2.2.67.2 The registrant agrees to allow any inspection and sampling that the Department deems necessary.
- 2.2.67.3 The registrant agrees to pay for any **sampling INSPECTION** and **LABORATORY** analysis costs that the Department deems necessary **WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THE INVOICE.**
- 2.2.67.4 The registrant agrees to submit all required reports by the applicable due-dates specified by the Commissioner.

2.3 REGISTRATIONS CANNOT BE ASSIGNED OR TRANSFERRED TO ANOTHER BUSINESS, INDIVIDUAL OR OTHER ENTITY.

2.4 NO PLANT SHALL BE INCLUDED IN MORE THAN ONE REGISTRATION.

2.5 NO REGISTERED LAND AREA MAY CONTAIN CANNABIS PLANTS OR PARTS THEREOF THAT THE REGISTRANT KNOWS OR HAS REASON TO KNOW ARE OF A VARIETY THAT WILL PRODUCE A PLANT THAT WHEN TESTED WILL PRODUCE MORE THAN 0.3% THC ON A DRY WEIGHT BASIS. NO REGISTRANT SHALL USE ANY SUCH VARIETY FOR ANY PURPOSE ASSOCIATED WITH THE CULTIVATION OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP.

2.6 IN ORDER TO MINIMIZE THE POSSIBILITY OF CROSS-POLLINATION WITH MARIJUANA PLANTS, NO REGISTRANT SHALL GROW ANY INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTS WITHIN ONE MILE OF ANY OTHER CANNABIS PLANT THAT ARE NOT INCLUDED IN AN INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION AND ARE GROWING OUTDOORS, OR WITHIN ¼ MILE OF ANY CANNABIS PLANTS THAT ARE NOT INCLUDED IN AN INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION AND ARE GROWING INDOORS, UNLESS SPECIFICALLY AUTHORIZED BY THE COMMISSIONER.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

2.7 ~~EACH NONCONTIGUOUS LAND AREA ON WHICH INDUSTRIAL HEMP IS GROWN SHALL REQUIRE A SEPARATE REGISTRATION. ANY ADDITION TO A REGISTERED LAND AREA SHALL ALSO REQUIRE A SEPARATE REGISTRATION.~~

2.38 In addition to the application form, each applicant for a registration shall submit the registration fee set by the Commissioner. If the registration fee does not accompany the application, the application for registration will be deemed incomplete.

2.49 The annual registration fee for commercial production of ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~emp shall be \$~~25~~00 plus \$~~15~~.00/acre ~~OUTDOORS AND/OR \$.33/1000 SQ. FT. INDOORS.~~

2.510 The annual registration fee for production of ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~emp for research and development shall be \$~~15~~00 plus \$5/acre ~~OUTDOORS AND/OR \$.33/1000 SQ. FT. INDOORS.~~

2.611 All registrations shall be valid for one year from date of issuance.

2.12 ~~ALL PLANT MATERIAL MUST BE PLANTED AND HARVESTED WITHIN THE REGISTRATION PERIOD.~~

2.13 ~~AMENDMENTS TO AN EXISTING REGISTRATION ARE LIMITED TO CHANGES WITHIN THE ORIGINAL LAND AREA REGISTERED, INCLUDING VARIETY CHANGES, LOCATION(S) OF VARIETIES, AND ACTUAL ACREAGE OR SQUARE FEET OF EACH VARIETY PLANTED.~~

~~2.7 Any registrant that wishes to alter the growing area(s) on which the registrant will conduct industrial hemp cultivation for either commercial or research and development purposes shall, before altering the area, submit to the Department an updated legal description, global positioning system location, and map specifying the proposed alterations.~~

2.14 ~~INCOMPLETE APPLICATIONS WILL NOT BE PROCESSED AND APPLICATION FEES WILL NOT BE REFUNDED IF A REGISTRATION IS NOT GRANTED.~~

2.15 ~~ANY CHANGES TO CONTACT INFORMATION MUST BE PROVIDED WITHIN 10 DAYS OF THE CHANGE.~~

Part 3 REPORTS

3.1 Prior to planting each commercial ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~emp registrant shall file a report with the Commissioner that includes:

3.1.1 A statement of verification on a form provided by the Commissioner that the crop the registrant will plant is of a type and variety of ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~emp that will produce a THC concentration of no more than 0.3% on a dry weight basis.

3.1.2 A description of the ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~emp varieties to be planted on the ~~growing area(s)~~ registered ~~LAND AREA to the registrant~~ and a map showing where they will be planted. ~~ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO BE USED FOR CULTIVATION OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA MUST BE INCLUDED.~~

3.1.3 ~~A STATEMENT OF INTENDED END USE FOR ALL PARTS OF ANY INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTS GROWN WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.~~

3.2 ~~WITHIN 10 DAYS AFTER PLANTING, EACH COMMERCIAL REGISTRANT SHALL SUBMIT A REPORT WITH THE COMMISSIONER THAT INCLUDES:~~

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

~~3.2.1~~ A LIST OR DESCRIPTION OF ALL VARIETIES PLANTED WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.2.2~~ THE LOCATION AND ACTUAL ACREAGE OR SQUARE FEET OF EACH VARIETY PLANTED WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.23~~ At least 30 days prior to harvest, each commercial ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp registrant shall file a report with the Commissioner that includes:

~~3.23.1~~ Documentation that the commercial registrant has entered into a purchase agreement with an in-state ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp processor. If the registrant has not entered into such an agreement, the registrant shall include a statement of intended disposition of its ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp crop.

~~3.23.2~~ The harvest date(s) AND LOCATION of each variety planted WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.34~~ Prior to planting, each research and development ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp registrant shall file a report with the Commissioner that includes:

~~3.34.1~~ A description of the hemp varieties to be planted on the ~~growing-area(s)~~ registered LAND AREA to the registrant and a map showing where they are planted. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO BE USED FOR CULTIVATION OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA MUST BE INCLUDED.

~~3.4.2~~ A STATEMENT OF INTENDED END USE FOR ALL PARTS OF ANY INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTS GROWN WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.5~~ WITHIN 10 DAYS AFTER PLANTING, EACH RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRANT SHALL SUBMIT A REPORT WITH THE COMMISSIONER THAT INCLUDES:

~~3.5.1~~ A LIST OR DESCRIPTION OF ALL VARIETIES PLANTED WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.5.2~~ THE LOCATION AND ACTUAL ACREAGE OR SQUARE FEET OF EACH VARIETY PLANTED WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.5.3~~ A STATEMENT OF VERIFICATION ON A FORM PROVIDED BY THE COMMISSIONER THAT THE CROP THE REGISTRANT WILL PLANT IS OF A TYPE AND VARIETY BELIEVED TO PRODUCE PLANT MATERIAL OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP WITH A THC CONCENTRATION OF NO MORE THAN 0.3% ON A DRY WEIGHT BASIS. ALL PLANT MATERIAL TO BE USED IN OR AS A PART OF AN INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION MUST BE INCLUDED.

~~3.46~~ At least 30 days prior to harvest, each research and development ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp registrant shall file a report with the ~~C~~ommissioner that includes:

~~3.46.1~~ A statement of the intended use ~~or other disposition of the registrant's industrial hemp crop~~ OF ALL INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTED WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

~~3.46.2~~ The harvest date(s) AND LOCATION of each variety planted WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

~~3.5 Registrants must report any subsequent changes to the purchase agreement or disposition statement to the Commissioner within ten days of the change.~~

3.7 EACH COMMERCIAL AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRANT SHALL REPORT TO THE COMMISSIONER ANY CHANGES TO INFORMATION PROVIDED IN THE REGISTRATION OR ANY PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED REPORTS, INCLUDING ANY CHANGES TO THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT OR STATEMENT OF INTENDED DISPOSITION, WITHIN 10 DAYS OF SUCH CHANGE.

Part 4 INSPECTION PROGRAM

4.1 All registrants ~~ntitions~~ are subject to sampling ~~of their industrial hemp crop~~ to verify that the THC concentration OF THE CANNABIS PLANTED WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA does not exceed 0.3% on dry weight basis. The Commissioner ~~shall~~ MAY select up to ~~33~~100% of the registrants to be inspected, ~~except that no registrant may be selected more than two years in row without cause.~~ The Commissioner shall ~~notify~~ SEND NOTIFICATION TO each registrant of their selection ~~by certified mail.~~ The notification shall inform the registrant of the scope and process by which the inspection will be conducted and require the registrant to contact the Department within ~~30~~10 days to set a date and time for the inspection to occur. FAILURE TO CONTACT THE DEPARTMENT AS REQUIRED WILL RESULT IN THE INITIATION OF DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS PURSUANT TO PART 6 OF THESE RULES AGAINST THE REGISTRATION.

4.2 During the inspection, the registrant or authorized representative shall be present at the growing operation. The registrant or authorized representative shall provide the Department's Inspector with complete and unrestricted access to all ~~industrial hemp~~ CANNABIS plants, ~~PARTS~~ and seeds WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA whether growing or harvested, AND all land, buildings and other structures used for the cultivation and storage of ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~Hemp, and all documents and records pertaining to the registrant's ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~Hemp growing business.

4.3 ~~Sampling of industrial hemp plants will occur in the following manner:~~ ALL CANNABIS PLANTS WITHIN A REGISTERED LAND AREA MAY BE SAMPLED TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP PROGRAM.

4.3.1 ~~INDIVIDUAL OR C~~INDIVIDUAL OR Composite samples of each variety of ~~industrial hemp~~ CANNABIS may be sampled from the ~~growing area(s)~~ REGISTERED LAND AREA at the Department's discretion.

4.3.2 The sampled material will be PREPARED FOR TESTING USING PROTOCOLS APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER AND divided into two ~~equally sized~~ parts. One part will be used for testing. The other part will be retained for retesting.

4.3.3 Quantitative laboratory determination of the THC concentration on a dry weight basis will be performed according to protocols approved by the Commissioner.

4.3.4 A ~~composite~~ sample test result greater than 0.3% THC ~~will be considered~~ SHALL CONSTITUTE conclusive evidence that at least one cannabis plant or part of a plant in the growing REGISTERED LAND area contains a THC concentration over the limit allowed for ~~l~~industrial ~~H~~Hemp and that the registrant of that growing REGISTERED LAND area is therefore not in compliance with the Act. Upon receipt of such a test result, the Commissioner may summarily suspend ~~and OR~~ revoke the registration of ~~a commercial~~ AN lndustrial ~~H~~Hemp registrant in accordance with THE ACT, THESE RULES AND § 24-4-104 (4), C.R.S. SAMPLE TEST RESULTS FOR INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATIONS THAT ARE

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

~~**GREATER THAN 1.0% THC CONCENTRATION MAY BE PROVIDED TO THE APPROPRIATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCIES.**~~

~~**4.3.4.1 SAMPLE TEST RESULTS FOR COMMERCIAL INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRANTS THAT ARE GREATER THAN 1.0% THC CONCENTRATION WILL BE PROVIDED TO THE APPROPRIATE STATE LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY.**~~

4.4 Fees

4.4.1 Registrants selected for inspection shall pay a charge of \$35 dollars per hour per inspector for actual drive time, mileage, inspection and sampling time.

4.4.2 Registrants selected for inspection shall reimburse the Department for all laboratory analysis costs incurred by it **WITHIN 30 DAYS OF THE DATE OF THE INVOICE.**

Part 5 WAIVER

5.1 Notwithstanding the fact that a sample of a research and development registrant's ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp tests higher than 0.3% **BUT LESS THAN 1%** THC content the registrant shall not be subject to any penalty if:

5.1.1 The sampled ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp was grown solely for research and development purposes by an individual or entity holding a research and development registration, and the crop is destroyed or utilized on site in a manner approved of and verified by the Commissioner.

5.1.2 Test results from a research and development registrant may, at the Commissioner's discretion, be accepted in lieu of Department sampling.

5.2 Notwithstanding the fact that a sample of a commercial registrant's ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp tests higher than 0.3% but less than 1% THC content the registrant shall not be subject to revocation or suspension of their registration if the crop is destroyed or utilized in a manner approved of and verified by the Commissioner.

Part 6 VIOLATIONS/DISCIPLINARY SANCTIONS/CIVIL PENALTIES

6.1 In addition to any other violations of Title 35, Article 61, C.R.S., or these Rules, the following acts and omissions by any registrant or authorized representative thereof constitute violations for which civil penalties up to \$2,500 **PER VIOLATION** and disciplinary sanctions, including **SUMMARY SUSPENSION OR** revocation of a registration, may be imposed by the Commissioner in accordance with §§ 35-61-107 and 24-4-104, C.R.S.:

6.1.1 Refusal or failure by a registrant or authorized representative to fully cooperate and assist the Department with the inspection process.

6.1.2 Failure to provide any information required or requested by the Commissioner for purposes of the Act or these Rules.

6.1.3 Providing false, misleading, or incorrect information pertaining to the registrant's cultivation of ~~i~~industrial ~~H~~hemp to the Commissioner by any means, including but not

*Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.*

limited to information provided in any application form, report, record or inspection required or maintained for purposes of the Act or these Rules.

- 6.1.4 Failure to submit any required report in accordance with ~~Rule 3-0 PART 3~~.
- 6.1.5 Growing ~~industrial hemp~~ **CANNABIS** that when tested is shown to have a THC concentration greater than 0.3% on a dry weight basis.
- 6.1.6 Failure to pay fees assessed by the Commissioner for inspection or laboratory analysis costs.

Parts 7 & 8 RESERVED

Part 9 STATEMENTS OF BASIS, SPECIFIC STATUTORY AUTHORITY AND PURPOSE

9.1 Adopted November 12, 2013 – Effective December 30, 2013

Statutory Authority

These rules are proposed for adoption by the Commissioner of the Colorado Department of Agriculture (“CDA”) pursuant to his authority under the Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program Act (the "Act"), §§ 35-61-104(5) and 35-61-105(2), C.R.S.

Purpose

The purposes of these proposed rules are to:

1. Adopt a Part 1 setting forth definitions of specific terms used in these Rules.
2. Adopt Rules in Part 2 establishing a process for registering growers of industrial hemp and setting forth the information and fees required.
3. Adopt Rules in Part 3 establishing the information reporting requirements with which registrants must comply.
4. Adopt Rules in Part 4 establishing an inspection program to ensure compliance with the provisions of the Act and these Rules.
5. Adopt Rules in Part 5 creating conditional penalty waiver provisions for registrants whose industrial hemp crop THC content tests between 0.3% and 1.0% by dry weight.
6. Adopt Rules in Part 6 specifying violations of these Rules for which penalties may be imposed.

Factual and Policy Basis

The factual and policy issues encountered when developing these rules include:

1. Senate Bill 13-241 authorized the creation of a program within the Department of Agriculture to regulate industrial hemp cultivation.

*Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.*

2. The bill created a nine-member advisory committee to work with the Department to develop rules establishing an Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program. This committee was appointed by Senator Gail Schwartz and Representative Randy Fischer.
3. The committee held three public meetings to determine what rules were necessary to implement this program and draft the appropriate language. The committee will continue to work with the Department to refine and update these Rules over the coming years, as well as review the testing protocols that Department staff is currently developing.

9.2 Adopted June 11, 2014 – Effective June 11, 2014

Statutory Authority

These emergency rules are proposed for adoption by the Commissioner of the Colorado Department of Agriculture ("CDA") pursuant to his authority under the Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program Act (the "Act"), Sections 35-61-104(5) and 35-61-105(2), C.R.S.

Purpose

The purposes of these proposed rules are to:

1. Adopt a registration time period of 30 days prior to planting with the elimination of the May 1 registration deadline.
2. Allow the Department to collect crop intended harvest date and disposition information 30 days prior to harvest, rather than 7 days prior to harvest.

Factual and Policy Basis

The factual and policy issues encountered when developing these rules include:

1. Senate Bill 14-184 eliminated the May 1 deadline for program registration. The Department needs 30 days to process hemp applications.
2. The Department needs 3 -4 weeks to plan sampling.

9.3 Adopted August 5, 2014 – Effective September 30, 2014

Statutory Authority

These rules are proposed for adoption by the Commissioner of the Colorado Department of Agriculture ("CDA") pursuant to his authority under the Industrial Hemp Regulatory Program Act (the "Act"), Sections 35-61-104(5) and 35-61-105(2), C.R.S.

Purpose

The purposes of these proposed rules are to make permanent emergency rules effective June 11, 2014. Specifically, these amendments:

1. Adopt a registration time period of 30 days prior to planting with the elimination of the May 1 registration deadline.

*Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.*

2. Allow the Department to collect crop intended harvest date and disposition information 30 days prior to harvest, rather than 7 days prior to harvest.

Factual and Policy Basis

The factual and policy issues encountered when developing these rules include:

1. Senate Bill 14-184 eliminated the May 1 deadline for program registration. The Department needs 30 days to process hemp applications.
2. The Department needs 3 -4 weeks to plan sampling.

9.4 ADOPTED FEBRUARY 11, 2014 – EFFECTIVE MARCH 30, 2015

STATUTORY AUTHORITY

THESE RULES ARE PROPOSED FOR ADOPTION BY THE COMMISSIONER OF THE COLORADO DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE ("CDA") PURSUANT TO HIS AUTHORITY UNDER THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGULATORY PROGRAM ACT (THE "ACT"), SECTIONS 35-61-104(5) AND 35-61-105(2), C.R.S.

PURPOSE

THE PURPOSES OF THESE PROPOSED RULES ARE TO:

1. AMEND THE DEFINITION OF "COMMERCIAL" IN RULE 1.2. TO ESTABLISH CLEAR SEPARATION BETWEEN THE ACTIVITIES PERMITTED UNDER A COMMERCIAL REGISTRATION AND A RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRATION.
2. AMEND THE DEFINITION OF "LAW ENFORCEMENT" IN RULE 1.8.
3. ADOPT A NEW RULE 1.9 TO DEFINE "REGISTRANT."
4. ADOPT A NEW RULE 1.10 TO DEFINE "REGISTRATION."
5. AMEND THE DEFINITION OF "RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT" IN RULE 1.11 TO FOLLOW THE 2014 FARM BILL LANGUAGE.
6. ADOPT A NEW RULE 1.12 TO DEFINE "VARIETY."
7. AMEND LANGUAGE REFERENCING SITE AND GROWING AREA(S) USED THROUGHOUT THE RULES TO REFLECT THE ABOVE DEFINITION CHANGES.
8. AMEND LANGUAGE REFERENCING SAMPLING AND ANALYSIS COSTS AND ADD TERMS OF PAYMENT USED IN RULES 2.1.7.3 AND 2.2.7.3.
9. SEPARATE LANGUAGE FROM RULE 2.2.5 AND CREATE RULE 2.2.6 FOR RULE LANGUAGE CONSISTENCY BETWEEN COMMERCIAL AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT RULES FORMAT.
10. CREATE A NEW RULE 2.3 BARRING THE TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP OF A REGISTRATION.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **BOLD, SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

11. CREATE A NEW RULE 2.4 LANGUAGE BARRING REGISTRATION OF ONE PLANT UNDER TWO REGISTRATIONS.
12. CREATE A NEW RULE 2.5 BARRING ANY CANNABIS PLANTS OTHER THAN INDUSTRIAL HEMP ON A REGISTERED LAND AREA.
13. CREATE A NEW RULE 2.6 SETTING LIMITS ON HOW CLOSE TO A REGISTERED LAND AREA UNREGISTERED CANNABIS PLANTS MAY BE GROWN.
14. CREATE A NEW RULE 2.7 TO DEFINE WHAT CAN BE INCLUDED IN A SINGLE REGISTRATION.
15. AMEND REGISTRATION FEES IN RULES 2.9 AND 2.10 TO COVER THE COST OF ADMINISTERING THE PROGRAM.
16. ADOPT A NEW RULE 2.12 TO REQUIRE HARVEST OF ALL PLANTS WITHIN THE REGISTRATION PERIOD.
17. ADOPT A NEW RULE 2.13 LIMITING AMENDMENTS TO A REGISTRATION.
18. ADOPT A NEW RULE 2.14 REGARDING PROCESSING OF APPLICATIONS.
19. ADOPT A NEW RULE 2.15 REQUIRING REGISTRANTS TO MAINTAIN CURRENT CONTACT INFORMATION WITH THE DEPARTMENT.
20. AMEND RULES 3.1.2 AND 3.4.1 TO REQUIRE REPORTING OF ALL PLANT MATERIAL USED IN AN INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTERED LAND AREA.
21. ADOPT NEW RULES 3.1.3 AND 3.4.2 REQUIRING REGISTRANTS TO REPORT THE INTENDED USE OF ALL PARTS OF THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP CROP INCLUDED IN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.
22. ADOPT NEW RULES 3.2 AND 3.5 REQUIRING REPORTING OF THE VARIETIES AND LOCATION OF ALL INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTED IN A REGISTERED LAND AREA.
23. ADOPT A NEW RULE 3.5.3 REQUIRING RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRANTS TO VERIFY THAT ALL THE VARIETIES PLANTED ARE INTENDED TO PRODUCE A CROP WITH A THC CONCENTRATION OF 0.3% OR LESS.
24. AMEND RULES 3.3.2 AND 3.6.2 TO REQUIRE REPORTING OF SPECIFIC CROP LOCATION INFORMATION AT LEAST 30 DAYS PRIOR TO HARVEST.
25. ADOPT A NEW RULE 3.7 TO REQUIRE REPORTING OF ANY CHANGES IN INFORMATION PREVIOUSLY SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT WITHIN 10 DAYS.
26. AMEND RULE 4.1 TO ALLOW SAMPLING OF ALL CANNABIS PLANTS ON A REGISTERED INDUSTRIAL HEMP LAND AREA, ALLOW SAMPLING OF UP TO 100% OF THE REGISTRANTS, ALLOW THE DEPARTMENT TO NOTIFY THE REGISTRANT OF INSPECTION BY METHODS OTHER THAN CERTIFIED MAIL, REQUIRE REGISTRANTS TO CONTACT THE DEPARTMENT WITHIN 10 DAYS OF INSPECTION NOTIFICATION AND EXPLAIN THE CONSEQUENCE FOR FAILING TO DO SO.
27. AMEND RULE 4.2 TO ALLOW ACCESS TO ALL CANNABIS MATERIAL ASSOCIATED WITH A REGISTRATION.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

28. AMEND RULES 4.3 AND 4.3.1 TO ALLOW INDIVIDUAL OR COMPOSITE SAMPLING OF ALL CANNABIS PLANTS ON A REGISTERED INDUSTRIAL HEMP LAND AREA.

29. AMEND RULE 4.3.2 TO ALLOW MORE VALID SCIENTIFIC TESTING PROTOCOLS.

30. AMEND RULE 4.3.4 TO INCLUDE THE UPDATED LANGUAGE FROM EXISTING RULE 4.3.4.1 AND REMOVE THE TERM COMMERCIAL SO ANY REGISTRATION FOUND NOT IN COMPLIANCE COULD BE SUSPENDED OR REVOKED IN ACCORDANCE WITH C.R.S. 24-4-104.

31. AMEND RULE 4.4.2 TO SET TERMS OF PAYMENT TO 30 DAYS OF INVOICE.

32. AMEND RULE 5.1 TO INCLUDE THE SAME 1.0% THC LIMIT FOR A WAIVER FROM PENALTY AS APPLIED TO COMMERCIAL REGISTRATIONS.

33. AMEND RULE 6.1 TO CLARIFY SCOPE AND ADD SUMMARY SUSPENSION LANGUAGE FOR CLARITY PURPOSES.

34. AMEND RULE 6.1.5 TO INCLUDE PROPER TERMINOLOGY FOR CANNABIS EXCEEDING 0.3% THC.

FACTUAL AND POLICY BASIS

THE FACTUAL AND POLICY ISSUES ENCOUNTERED WHEN DEVELOPING THESE RULES INCLUDE:

1. THE REVISED DEFINITIONS FOR "COMMERCIAL" AND "RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT" IN RULES 1.2 AND 1.11 ARE INTENDED TO ESTABLISH A CLEAR SEPARATION BETWEEN THE ACTIVITIES ALLOWED UNDER A COMMERCIAL REGISTRATION AND A RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRATION. ALL INDUSTRIAL HEMP PRODUCTION ACTIVITIES NOT AUTHORIZED BY THE 2014 FARM BILL RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT LANGUAGE, INCLUDING ALL PRIVATELY-CONDUCTED RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, ARE COVERED BY A COMMERCIAL REGISTRATION. IN ADDITION TO PRIVATE SCIENTIFIC RESEARCH, THIS CHANGE IN DEFINITIONAL LANGUAGE WILL ALLOW RESEARCH FOR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE OR PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT WITHOUT LIMITING THE SALE OR DISTRIBUTION OF PLANT MATERIAL USED AND PRODUCED UNDER A COMMERCIAL REGISTRATION, SIMILAR TO WHAT COMMERCIAL ENTERPRISES IN OTHER INDUSTRIES DO FOR PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT IN A RESEARCH DIVISION OF A COMPANY. THIS RULE CHANGE MEETS THE NEEDS OF REGISTRANTS WHO HAVE REQUESTED SALE OF MATERIAL FROM THEIR RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRATIONS BY ALIGNING THEIR RESEARCH TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER COMMERCIAL REGISTRATION WITHOUT STRUCTURALLY CHANGING THEIR RESEARCH PRACTICES.
2. RULE 1.8 IS INTENDED TO CLARIFY THE BROAD SCOPE OF GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES INVOLVED IN LAW ENFORCEMENT AND ELIMINATE UNNECESSARY LANGUAGE ABOUT THEIR ACTIVITIES.
3. RULES 1.9 AND 1.10 ARE INTENDED TO DEFINE THE DIFFERENCE BETWEEN A PERSON OR ENTITY WHO HAS BEEN GRANTED APPROVAL FROM AND THE AUTHORIZATION TO GROW INDUSTRIAL HEMP ON A SPECIFIC SITE.
4. RULE 1.12 CREATES A DEFINITION FOR USE IN THE RULES THAT CLARIFIES REGISTRATION, PLANTING AND HARVEST REQUIREMENTS. THE DEFINITION IS ALSO NECESSARY FOR DELINEATION PURPOSES DURING SAMPLING.
5. THE CHANGES IN RULES 2.1, 2.2, 3.1, AND 3.4 ARE NEEDED TO MAKE THE LANGUAGE IN THOSE RULES CONSISTENT WITH OTHER LANGUAGE IN THE RULES.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

6. AMENDING THE LANGUAGE IN 2.1.7.3 AND 2.2.7.3 IS INTENDED TO STANDARDIZE THE TERMINOLOGY WITH THAT USED IN PART 4, CLARIFY THE COSTS FOR WHICH A REGISTRANT IS RESPONSIBLE, AND SET THE TERMS OF PAYMENT WHICH ARE NOT CURRENTLY SPECIFIED. THIS CLARIFICATION IS NECESSARY BECAUSE SOME REGISTRANTS HAVE DELAYED PAYMENT OF FEES UNTIL ANOTHER REGISTRATION IS GRANTED OR UNTIL THEY HAVE NEGOTIATED INDIVIDUAL PAYMENT TERMS, CREATING ADMINISTRATIVE CONFUSION AND INCREASING PROGRAM COSTS.
7. SEPARATING THE REQUIREMENTS IN RULE 2.2.6 AND 2.2.5 IMPROVES CONSISTENCY AND EASE OF RULE READABILITY.
8. THE PROHIBITION IN RULE 2.3 ON THE TRANSFER OF REGISTRATION IS NECESSARY TO FACILITATE INSPECTION AND SAMPLING AND TO PREVENT THE TRANSFER OF REGISTRATIONS TO PERSONS OR ENTITIES WHO WOULD NOT OTHERWISE QUALIFY FOR A REGISTRATION DUE TO PREVIOUS SANCTIONS AND PENALTIES. THIS ALSO CLOSES A POTENTIAL LOOPHOLE THROUGH WHICH A LEGALLY ACQUIRED INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION COULD BE TRANSFERRED TO ANOTHER INDIVIDUAL FOR PURPOSES OF EVASION IN GROWING OR TRANSPORTING OF MARIJUANA.
9. RULE 2.4 IS NECESSARY TO AVOID CONFUSION WHEN A REGISTRANT HOLDS MULTIPLE REGISTRATIONS. THIS RULE WILL ENABLE THE DEPARTMENT TO ACCURATELY IDENTIFY, INSPECT AND SAMPLE ALL OF THE PLANTS GROWN UNDER A SPECIFIC REGISTRATION.
10. UNDER ARTICLE XVIII, SECTION 16 OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION (ADOPTED BY VOTERS AS "AMENDMENT 64") "INDUSTRIAL HEMP" IS DEFINED AND REGULATED SEPARATELY FROM "MARIJUANA". THE DEPARTMENT THEREFORE HAS NO LEGAL JURISDICTION OVER CANNABIS THAT CONTAINS MORE THAN 0.3% THC ON A DRY WEIGHT BASIS BECAUSE IT IS CONSTITUTIONALLY DEFINED AS MARIJUANA AND NOT INDUSTRIAL HEMP. THE DEPARTMENT THUS DOES NOT HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO GRANT THE POSSESSION OR USE OF ANY CANNABIS MATERIAL ABOVE 0.3% THC WITHIN ITS INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION PROGRAM; ALL SUCH MATERIAL IS REGULATED AS MARIJUANA UNDER THE AUTHORITY OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE. RULE 2.5 IS NECESSARY TO PREVENT THE USE OR PRESENCE OF PLANT MATERIAL IN A REGISTERED LAND AREA THAT WOULD BE OUTSIDE THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE'S JURISDICTION. THE PROPOSED RULE LANGUAGE DOES NOT LIMIT THE RIGHT TO POSSESS OR CONDUCT MARIJUANA RESEARCH BUT DOES PREVENT MARIJUANA MATERIAL FROM KNOWINGLY BEING USED UNDER THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP PROGRAM BY EXCLUDING IT FROM THE AREA THE REGISTRANT HAS AGREED IS DEDICATED TO INDUSTRIAL HEMP.
11. THE PROVISIONS IN RULE 2.6 ARE NEEDED TO PREVENT POLLEN FROM MARIJUANA PLANTS FROM BEING EASILY CROSSED WITH INDUSTRIAL HEMP PLANTS GROWN BY THE SAME PERSON OR ENTITY. THE RULE PROVIDES FOR VARIANCES WHERE A REGISTRANT CAN DEMONSTRATE A LEGITIMATE NEED, AND ADEQUATE PROTECTIONS TO PREVENT CROSS POLLINATION ARE PROVIDED.
12. RULE 2.7 DEFINES WHAT MAY BE INCLUDED IN A SINGLE REGISTRATION. THE CHANGE IS NECESSARY TO TRACK REGISTRATION SITES, WHAT IS PLANTED ON A REGISTERED LAND AREA AND ENSURE ACCURATE TESTING CAN BE DONE. THE CURRENT SYSTEM HAS CREATED ADMINISTRATIVE ISSUES AS REGISTRANTS HAVE ADDED SITES MILES AWAY FROM EXISTING REGISTRATIONS DURING THE GROWING SEASON AND CANCELLED GROWING AREAS REGISTERED UNDER THE SAME REGISTRATION, CREATING SITUATIONS WHERE IT HAS BECOME DIFFICULT TO TRACK WHERE PLANT MATERIAL CURRENTLY IS BEING GROWN FOR INSPECTION PURPOSES. THESE CHANGES IN REGISTRATIONS HAVE ALSO INCREASED THE COST OF PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION AS THE DEPARTMENT ATTEMPTS TO TRACK SITES CURRENTLY REGISTERED TO GROW INDUSTRIAL HEMP. THE RULE DOES NOT LIMIT THE REGISTRANTS ABILITY TO STAGGER PLANTING WITHIN A

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

REGISTERED LAND AREA. THE RULE IS ALSO INTENDED TO FACILITATE THE ESTABLISHMENT OF AN EQUITABLE FEE STRUCTURE TO SELF-FUND THE PROGRAM AS MANDATED IN THE ACT.

13. THE DEPARTMENT IS PROPOSING TO INCREASE THE FEES IN RULE 2.9 AND 2.10 TO COMPLY WITH THE SELF-FUNDING MANDATE SET FORTH IN SECTION 35-61-106 (2), C.R.S. CURRENT FEES HAVE GENERATED LESS THAN 20% OF THE NECESSARY REVENUE TO SUPPORT THE PROGRAM. SECTION 35-61-106 (2), C.R.S., LIMITS THE SOURCES OF REVENUE TO REGISTRATION FEES AND LAND AREA. LEAVING REGISTRATION FEES AT CURRENT LEVELS WOULD REQUIRE PER ACRE FEES TO EXCEED \$55. THE NEW REGISTRATION FEE STRUCTURE WAS DEVELOPED TO EQUITABLY GENERATE SUFFICIENT REVENUE TO SELF-FUND THE PROGRAM AT CURRENT REGISTRATION LEVELS. THE FEES FOR COMMERCIAL AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT REGISTRATIONS WERE SET AT THE SAME LEVEL SO AS NOT TO FAVOR EITHER TYPE OF REGISTRATION OR DISADVANTAGE RESEARCH FOR COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE CONDUCTED UNDER A COMMERCIAL REGISTRATION.
14. SECTION 35-61-104(3), C.R.S. DEFINES THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF A VALID REGISTRATION TO ONE YEAR. TO REGULATE THE PROGRAM IT IS NECESSARY FOR PLANT MATERIAL TO BE REGISTERED BEFORE PLANTING AS REQUIRED IN RULES 2.1 AND 2.2. TO INSURE THAT ALL PLANT MATERIAL IS REGULATED UNDER A VALID REGISTRATION AND THEREFORE PROTECTED UNDER SECTION 35-61-102(2), C.R.S., RULE 2.12 WAS CREATED TO CLARIFY THE REQUIREMENT TO HARVEST BEFORE A REGISTRATION EXPIRES.
15. RULE 2.13 IS NECESSARY TO PROHIBIT THE EXPANSION OF A REGISTRATION OUTSIDE OF THE ORIGINAL LAND AREA DESCRIBED IN THE APPLICATION FOR REGISTRATION. WITHOUT THIS LIMITATION IT IS VERY DIFFICULT AND TIME CONSUMING FOR THE DEPARTMENT TO TRACK PLANT MATERIAL TO A REGISTRATION OR ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH PLANTING REPORTS. REGISTRANTS HAVE USED THE CURRENT AMENDMENT LANGUAGE TO ESTABLISH NEW GROWING SITES AND ASSUME SITES ORIGINALLY REGISTERED TO ANOTHER REGISTRANT. THE CURRENT SYSTEM ALLOWING REGISTRANTS TO ADD NEW LOCATIONS THROUGH AMENDMENTS WITHOUT COST HAS SIGNIFICANTLY INCREASED THE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS OF THE PROGRAM WHICH MUST BE PASSED ON TO ALL REGISTRANTS.
16. RULE 2.14 INSURES THAT THE COST TO PROCESS AN APPLICATION INCURRED BY THE DEPARTMENT PRIOR AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER A REGISTRATION IS ISSUED ARE NOT PASSED ALONG TO OTHER REGISTRANTS SHOULD A REGISTRATION NOT BE GRANTED. UNDER SECTION 35-61-106(2), C.R.S., THE COMMISSIONER IS REQUIRED TO COLLECT FEES TO COVER ALL OF THE PROGRAM'S COSTS, INCLUDING THOSE ASSOCIATED WITH APPLICATIONS THAT ARE DENIED.
17. THE DEPARTMENT HAS SPENT CONSIDERABLE RESOURCES TRYING TO CONTACT THE REGISTRANTS AFTER REGISTRATION DUE TO CHANGES IN CONTACT INFORMATION. THIS HAS INCREASED ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS FOR THE PROGRAM. RULE 2.15 REQUIRES REGISTRANT CONTACT INFORMATION REMAIN CURRENT SO THE DEPARTMENT CAN CONTACT REGISTRANTS REGARDING SAMPLING AND INSPECTION WITHOUT ADDED ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS. SOME REGISTRANTS HAVE CHANGED THEIR CONTACT INFORMATION INCLUDING MAILING ADDRESS, E-MAIL ADDRESS AND PHONE NUMBERS TO EVADE REQUESTS BY THE DEPARTMENT TO CONDUCT INSPECTIONS.
18. RULES 3.1.2 AND 3.4.1 REQUIRE A REGISTRANT TO DISCLOSE ALL PLANT MATERIAL INTENDED FOR USE IN A REGISTERED LAND AREA TO BE DISCLOSED. THIS IS NECESSARY TO ENABLE THE DEPARTMENT TO CONFIRM THAT ALL PLANT MATERIAL USED WITHIN A LAND AREA REGISTERED WITH THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP PROGRAM IS OF A TYPE AND VARIETY THAT WILL PRODUCE PLANTS WITH A THC CONTENT NOT TO EXCEED 0.3% ON A DRY WEIGHT BASIS.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

19. RULES 3.1.3 AND 3.4.2 ARE NECESSARY TO FACILITATE THE INSPECTION AND SAMPLING OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP GROWN IN THE PROGRAM. THE INDUSTRIAL HEMP INSPECTION IS DONE BY A LIMITED NUMBER OF INSPECTORS WHO ALSO INSPECT MULTIPLE OTHER PROGRAMS FOR THE DEPARTMENT. TO ACCOMPLISH INSPECTIONS REQUIRED FOR ALL THE PROGRAMS CONSIDERABLE PLANNING AND COORDINATION OCCURS MONTHS PRIOR TO THE NEED TO FACILITATE OPTIMUM USE OF INSPECTION STAFF AND CONTROL COSTS.
20. THE REQUIREMENT OF A PLANTING REPORT IN RULES 3.2 AND 3.5 IS NECESSARY FOR THE DEPARTMENT TO DETERMINE WHAT FIELDS HAVE ACTUALLY BEEN PLANTED SO WE CAN DETERMINE WHAT FIELDS MAY NEED INSPECTION, ALLOCATE RESOURCES FOR INSPECTION, COLLECT VARIETY INFORMATION TO SUPPORT A SEED CERTIFICATION PROGRAM AND COLLECT AGRONOMIC DATA ON THE CROP TO DETERMINE ECONOMIC VALUE TO THE STATE.
21. RULE 3.5.3 IS INTENDED TO ENSURE THAT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRANTS DO NOT KNOWINGLY PLANT MATERIAL THAT WILL EXCEED 0.3% THC. AND THAT ALL MATERIAL USED IN THE RESEARCH PROJECT IS INCLUDED IN THE PLANTING REPORT.
22. RULES 3.3.2 AND 3.6.2 ARE NECESSARY FOR THE DEPARTMENT TO DETERMINE WHAT WILL BE HARVESTED COMPARED TO WHAT WAS ACTUALLY PLANTED, IDENTIFY GAPS, AND SCHEDULE INSPECTIONS APPROPRIATELY. THIS WILL ALSO ALLOW THE DEPARTMENT TO COLLECT HARVEST DATA TO DETERMINE THE SIZE OF THE FINAL CROP AND DOCUMENT CROP SIZE DEVELOPMENTS FOR ECONOMIC PURPOSES.
23. RULE 3.7 IS NECESSARY TO ENSURE THAT THE DEPARTMENT HAS THE MOST CURRENT INFORMATION ON ALL REGISTRANTS SO THAT IT CAN EFFECTIVELY PLAN INSPECTION RESOURCES AND MONITOR INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENTS.
24. THE CHANGE IN RULE 4.1 ALLOWING SAMPLING OF UP TO 100% OF REGISTRANTS IS NECESSARY TO ACCOMMODATE THE JULY 1, 2014 STATUTORY CHANGE ALLOWING YEAR ROUND REGISTRATION WHILE STILL CONDUCTING AN EFFECTIVE INSPECTION PROGRAM INCLUDING TESTING IN THE EVENT AN UNANTICIPATED VIOLATION IS REPORTED OR SUSPECTED. THE AMENDED LANGUAGE ALSO ELIMINATES THE EXEMPTION FROM TESTING AFTER TWO YEARS WHICH COULD PREVENT THE DEPARTMENT FROM RETESTING REGISTRANTS WITH PRIOR VIOLATIONS IN A TIMELY OR EFFECTIVE MANNER. THE CURRENT LANGUAGE HAS THE POTENTIAL FOR ABUSE BY REGISTRANTS WHO HAVE BEEN TESTED FOR TWO YEARS AND THUS COULD GROW MARIJUANA WITHOUT CONCERN OF INSPECTION THE THIRD YEAR.

THE AMENDED LANGUAGE IN RULE 4.1 WITH RESPECT TO NOTICE OF INSPECTION ALLOWS THE DEPARTMENT TO COMMUNICATE WITH THE REGISTRANTS IN A METHOD AGREED TO WITH THE REGISTRANT OR DEEMED EFFECTIVE FROM PREVIOUS COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE REGISTRANT. THE USE OF CERTIFIED MAIL HAS ALLOWED SOME REGISTRANTS TO SEE THE DEPARTMENT IS SENDING THEM COMMUNICATION AND AVOID SIGNING FOR IT IN AN EFFORT TO EVADE INSPECTION NOTIFICATION. IN OTHER CASES THE ADDRESS PROVIDED HAS BEEN RETURNED AS UNDELIVERABLE VIA CERTIFIED MAIL AND THE REGISTRANT HAS ASKED FOR AN E-MAIL OR PHONE CALL SO THEY CAN COMPLY.

THE TIME PERIOD FOR RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION WAS CHANGED FROM 30 DAYS AFTER NOTIFICATION TO 10 DAYS TO ALLOW THE DEPARTMENT TO DETERMINE HARVEST TIMING AND ARRANGE FOR INSPECTIONS. THE 30 DAYS HAMPERED THE DEPARTMENTS ABILITY TO COORDINATE INSPECTIONS OF MULTIPLE SITES INCREASING THE INSPECTION TRAVEL COSTS FOR THE REGISTRANT AS HARVEST IN MANY CASES WAS MORE IMMEDIATE ONCE THE REGISTRANT REPLIED.

Editing comments: Changes to this rule are indicated in ~~bold strikethrough~~ for removal and **SMALL CAP, DOUBLE UNDERLINE** for additions. If you are able to view this document in color the changes are also indicated in red.

25. REGISTRANTS HAVE AGREED UNDER 2.5 AND 2.6 NOT TO INCLUDE PLANT MATERIAL KNOWN OR THAT SHOULD REASONABLY BE KNOWN WILL EXCEED 0.3% THC ON A REGISTERED LAND OR CLOSER THAN A DESIGNATED SET-BACK FROM A REGISTERED LAND AREA UNLESS APPROVED BY THE COMMISSIONER AS TERMS OF REGISTRATION. THIS AMENDED SECTION OF 4.2 IS NECESSARY TO SUPPORT, VERIFY AND ENFORCE RULES 2.5, 2.6, 3.1.2, 3.4.1, 4.1, 4.3, AND 4.3.1.

THE CHANGES TO RULE 4.2 ARE NECESSARY TO ALLOW THE DEPARTMENT TO INSPECT ALL PLANTS IN THE REGISTERED LAND AREA. REGISTRANTS HAVE USED THE CURRENT RULE LANGUAGE TO ASSERT THAT SOME PLANTS USED BY THEM FOR CULTIVATION OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP CANNOT BE TESTED BY THE DEPARTMENT BECAUSE THEY ARE MARIJUANA THAT IS BEING GROWN FOR PERSONAL USE OR UNDER A MEDICAL MARIJUANA CARD APPLICATION. THE AMENDMENTS TO RULE 4.2 ARE NECESSARY TO VERIFY COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 2.5, 2.6, 3.1.2, 3.4.1, 4.2, 4.3, AND 4.3.1 WHICH PROHIBIT THE PRESENCE OR USE OF MARIJUANA WITHIN A LAND AREA REGISTERED FOR THE CULTIVATION OF INDUSTRIAL HEMP.
26. THE AMENDED LANGUAGE IN RULES 4.3 AND 4.3.1 ALLOWS ALL CANNABIS MATERIAL GROWN IN A LAND AREA UNDER AN INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION TO BE SAMPLED. IT ALLOWS THE DEPARTMENT OR REGISTRANT TO DETERMINE IF A SPECIFIC PLANT OR GROUP OF PLANTS IS TO BE SAMPLED. THIS AMENDED LANGUAGE ALLOWS THE DEPARTMENT TO WORK WITH INDUSTRIAL HEMP BREEDING PROJECTS WHERE SAMPLING EVERY INDIVIDUAL PLANT WOULD BE COST PROHIBITIVE TO A REGISTRANT AND COULD EFFECTIVELY DESTROY A BREEDING PROGRAM IF ALL PLANTS WERE SELECTED FOR INSPECTION.
27. THE AMENDED LANGUAGE IN RULE 4.3.2 CLARIFIES A PROCEDURAL PROCESS THAT INACCURATELY REPRESENTED SCIENTIFIC METHODOLOGY. SAMPLES ARE DIVIDED AFTER PREPARATION FOR TESTING SO THAT THE TWO SAMPLES ARE OF THE SAME COMPOSITE MAKE UP.
28. THE AMENDED LANGUAGE IN RULE 4.3.4 CLARIFIES THE LEGAL EFFECT OF TESTS RESULTS THAT EXCEED 0.3% THC FOR BOTH COMMERCIAL AND RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT REGISTRANTS.
29. THE AMENDED LANGUAGE IN RULE 4.4.2 IS FOR ADMINISTRATIVE PURPOSE. REGISTRANTS HAVE USED THE LACK OF CLEAR TERMS OF PAYMENT IN RULE AS A NEGOTIATION POINT TO MAKE PAYMENT PLANS FOR SERVICES OR DELAY PAYMENT UNTIL A NEW REGISTRATION IS NEEDED.
30. AMENDING RULE 5.1 TO INCLUDE AN UPPER THC LIMIT IN PLANT MATERIAL USED IN RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT IS NECESSARY TO ENSURE PROGRAMS ARE NOT KNOWINGLY USING MARIJUANA WITH A HIGH THC CONTENT UNDER AN INDUSTRIAL HEMP REGISTRATION.
31. THE AMENDMENT TO RULE 6.1 CLARIFIES THAT A REGISTRATION MAY BE SUMMARILY SUSPENDED IN APPROPRIATE CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER 35-61-107 AND 24-4-104, C.R.S.
32. THE AMENDMENT TO RULE 6.1.5 CONFORMS WITH THE CHANGES TO OTHER RULES PROHIBITING THE PRESENCE OR USE OF PLANT MATERIAL THAT EXCEEDS 0.3% THC ON A REGISTERED LAND AREA.
33. THESE AMENDMENTS INCORPORATE CHANGES AS A RESULT OF THE DEPARTMENT'S REGULATORY EFFICIENCY REVIEW PROCESS.